
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

• 



 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

• 

 



𝟑 𝟒⁄

𝟐 𝟓⁄

 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 



    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________  



 

 

 

☐

☐

☐

☐ ☐

☐ ☐

☐ ☐

□ 
□ 
□ 
□ 
□ 

□ 
□ 

□ 

 



 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

• 

• 

• 



 

 

 



 

 

 

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐
☐

☐ ☐ ☐

☐ ☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐ ☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐



 

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

 

☐

☐

☐

☐ ☐ ☐

 



 

 

☐ ☐

• 

• 

• 

• 



    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________  



 

 

 

☐

☐

☐

☐ ☐

☐ ☐ ☐

□ 
□ 
□ 
□ 
□ 

□ 
□ 

□ 

 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

 

 



 

 

 

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐
☐

☐ ☐ ☐

☐ ☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐ ☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐



 

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

☐

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

 

☐

☐

☐

☐ ☐ ☐

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

 

 



2021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1) 1

Dan Stovel

Regional Emergency Management Coordinator (REMC)

Kings REMO
Regional EM Plan

Change 1

2021-05-10
Town of Kentville



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

22021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

References:

• NS Emergency Management Act

• 2018-01-16 IMSA – Kings REMO

• 2018-09 Kings Regional EM Plan

The Regional EM Plan (REMP) serves as the Kings 
County emergency response plan to direct an 

integrated approach to emergency management



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

32021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

Purpose:

• The REMP unifies the efforts of Kings 
County resources for a comprehensive 
approach in responding to and reducing 
the impacts of an emergency

• Increases emergency response capacity 
across all of Kings County



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

42021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Kings County Regional Emergency 
Management Plan (REMP) Change 1

Dated: March 2021

Change 1 highlighted yellow



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

52021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Administration:
• Foreword – amended Mayor’s signature sheet

• ‘Table of Contents’ link added to bottom of each section

• NS DTIR amended to NS DTAT

• Section 3.3 Authority
• Amended composition of REMAC to read “two elected officials” in 

accordance with the NS Emergency Management Act
(Section 10(1)(d))



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

62021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Section 4.1.1 Incident Assumptions
– Fundamental Priorities:

1. Ensure the Health & Safety of Responders

2. Save Lives

3. Reduce Suffering

4. Protect Public Health

5. Protect Infrastructure

6. Protect Property

7. Protect the Environment

8. Reduce Economic & Social Losses



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

72021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Section 5.1.9 Epidemic / Pandemic
• Updated to include details of the SARS-CoV-2 (COVID-19) pandemic

• Section 5.2 Risk Analysis Matrix (updated to include):
• Extreme Heat Event likely to occur with moderate impact

• Cyber Attack might occur with significant impact

• Major Solar Flare not expected with catastrophic impact



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

82021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Section 5.2
Risk Analysis Matrix

• Added:
• Extreme Heat Event

Likely / Moderate likely to occur with moderate impact

• Cyber Attack
Might Occur / Significant might occur with significant impact

• Major Solar Flare
Not Expected / Catastrophic not expected with catastrophic impact



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

92021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Hurricane Winds
• Blizzards
• Power Blackout
• Freezing Rain
• Major Forest Fire
• Long-Term Closure 

Hwy 101

• Major Frost and Freeze
• Major Infrastructure 

Failure
• Major Water Main 

Break
• Boat Accident
• Major Structure Fire
• Major Road Accident
• River Flood
• Extreme Heat Event
• Water Shortage

• Bomb Threats
• Severe Fog
• Major Gas Main 

Break
• Plane Crash
• Tornado
• Civil Disobedience
• Pipeline-CNG 

Explosion
• Actual Bombing
• Mud or Landslide
• Radiological Accident
• Terrorist Attack

Very High Risk High Risk Medium Risk

• Fuel Shortage
• Chemical Contamination
• Cyber Attack
• Drought
• Epidemic/Pandemic
• Flash Flood
• Major Industrial Accident
• Dam Rupture
• Major Hailstorm
• Mass Shooting
• Major Solar Flare



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

102021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Section 7.0 Regional Emergency Management Organization
• Organizational structure amended

for reporting chain of REMC
to REMAC / CAOs



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

112021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Section 7.1 Regional Emergency Management Advisory Committee
• Composition of REMAC amended to read “two (2) members of Council from 

each Kings County Municipality”; and

• Effective date of Terms of Reference updated

• Section 7.2 Regional Emergency Management Planning Committee
• Terms of Reference effective date updated



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

122021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Section 8.3 Emergency Coordination Centre (ECC)
• Primary ECC location address updated to 181 Coldbrook Village Park Dr

• Section 9.2 Plan Maintenance and Responsibility
• Plan Revisions updated to reflect date of Change 1 to REMP



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

132021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Annex J – Primary ECC Layout
• Updated to reflect layout within 

Municipality of the County of 
Kings Council Chambers, 181 
Coldbrook Village Park Dr



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

142021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)

• Annex L – Province of NS – Important Numbers
• Update to NS EMO Duty Officer telephone number

• NS EMO Western Region EMPO amended to read “Region 4”

• Department of Lands & Forestry section amended replacing previous title of 
“Department of Natural Resources”



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

Proposed Approval Timeline:
2021-03-18 Kings REMO REMPC Meeting
2021-04-19 Kings REMO REMAC Meeting

2021-05-04 Wolfville COW
2021-05-10 Kentville CAC
2021-05-18 MoK COW
2021-05-18 Wolfville Council (for approval)
2021-05-25 Berwick COW
2021-05-31 Kentville Council (for approval)
2021-06-01 MoK Council (for approval)
2021-06-08 Berwick Council (for approval)

152021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)



Kings County
Regional EM Plan – Change 1

Draft Motion
That Council approve the Kings REMO
Change 1 to the Regional Emergency
Management Plan, dated March 2021

162021-05-10 Kings County, NS – REMO – REMP (Change 1)



 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Recommendation to Council 

Re:  REMO – Draft Change 1 to the Regional Emergency Management Plan, 

March 2021 

• The municipal units of Berwick, Kentville, Wolfville and Kings signed the Regional Emergency 

Management Organization (REMO) Intermunicipal Services Agreement; 

• As part of this agreement, REMO staff have been identifying any gaps within the Kings Regional 

Emergency Management Plan; 

• REMO Coordinator, Dan Stovel, had prepared a Draft Change 1 to the Regional Emergency 

Management Plan, dated March 2021, that was reviewed and approved by the Regional 

Emergency Management Planning Committee at the March 17th meeting, and the Regional 

Emergency Management Advisory Committee at the April 19th meeting 

Therefore, Council Advisory Committee recommends 

 

That Council approve the Draft Change 1 to the Kings REMO Regional Emergency Management 

Plan, dated March 2021 



 
 
 
Council Advisory Committee  May 10th, 2021 
 
 

TO: Council Advisory Committee 

SUBMITTED BY: Dan Stovel, Kings REMO 

SUBJECT: Change 1 to the Kings REMO Regional Emergency Management Plan, dated 

March 2021 

 

ORIGIN 

In the Spring of 2018, the municipal units of Berwick, Kentville, Wolfville and Kings signed the Regional 

Emergency Management Organization (REMO) Intermunicipal Services Agreement (IMSA).  As part of 

this agreement, REMO staff have been identifying any gaps in the Regional Emergency Management 

Plan. 

REMO Coordinator, Dan Stovel, has prepared a Draft Change 1 to the Kings REMO Regional Emergency 

Management Plan that has been reviewed by both the Regional Emergency Management Planning 

Committee (March 17, 2021), and the Regional Emergency Management Advisory Committee (April 19, 

2021).  All municipal units must review the attached Draft Plan for approval at a Council meeting in 

accordance with the following schedule: 

o 2021-05-04        Wolfville COW 

o 2021-05-10        Kentville CAC 

o 2021-05-18        MoK COW 

o 2021-05-18        Wolfville Council (for approval) 

o 2021-05-25        Berwick COW 

o 2021-05-31        Kentville Council (for approval) 

o 2021-06-01        MoK Council (for approval) 

o 2021-06-08        Berwick Council (for approval) 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Summary of Changes within Change 1 to the Kings REMO Regional Emergency Management Plan, 

dated March 2021 

• Draft Change 1 to the Kings REMO Regional Emergency Management Plan, dated March 2021 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that Council approve the attached Draft Change 1 to the Kings REMO Regional 

Emergency Management Plan dated March 2021.



 
 
 
Council Advisory Committee  May 10th, 2021 
 
 

Kings REMO Regional Emergency Management Plan (REMP) Change 1, 2021-03 

1.0 Introduction 

2.0 Objectives of Emergency Management 

3.0 Emergency Plan Framework 

4.0 Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

5.0 Hazard Risk Vulnerability Assessment (HRVA) 

6.0 Evacuation 

7.0 EM Organization (REMO) 

8.0 Logistical Support & Resource Requirements 

9.0 Plan Testing, Review & Maintenance 

10.0 Plan Distribution 

 

Change 1 – Summary 

Administrative: 

• Foreword – amended Mayoral signature sheet 

• Table of Contents – link to TOC included at end of each section throughout Plan 

• NS DTIR acronym amended to NS DTAT (Department of Transportation and Active Transit) 

Section 3.3 Authority 

• Amended composition of REMAC to read “two elected officials” in accordance with the Nova 

Scotia Emergency Management Act (Section 10(1)(d)) 

  

https://nslegislature.ca/sites/default/files/legc/statutes/emergency%20management.pdf
https://nslegislature.ca/sites/default/files/legc/statutes/emergency%20management.pdf


 
 
 
Council Advisory Committee  May 10th, 2021 
 
Section 4.1.1 Incident Assumptions 

• Updated fundamental priorities for Kings REMO during an emergency incident or disaster – 

Kings REMO Priorities 

1. Ensure the Health & Safety of Responders 

2. Save Lives 

3. Reduce Suffering 

4. Protect Public Health 

5. Protect Infrastructure 

6. Protect Property 

7. Protect the Environment 

8. Reduce Economic & Social Losses 

Section 5.1.9 Epidemic/Pandemic 

• Updated to include details of the SARS-CoV-2 (COVID-19) pandemic 

Section 5.2 – Risk Analysis Matrix 

• Hazard Risk Vulnerability Assessment updated 2021-02 with the following additions: 

o Extreme Heat Event (Likely to occur with moderate impact) 

o Cyber Attack (Might occur with significant impact) 

o Major Solar Flare (not expected with catastrophic impact) 

 

  



 
 
 
Council Advisory Committee  May 10th, 2021 
 
Section 7.0 – Regional Emergency Management Organization (REMO) 

• Organizational structure amended for reporting chain of REMC to REMAC/CAOs 

 

Section 7.1 – Regional Emergency Management Advisory Committee (REMAC) 

• Composition of REMAC amended to read two (2) members of Council from each Kings County 

Municipality and effective date of Terms of Reference updated 

Section 7.2 – Regional Emergency Management Planning Committee (REMPC) 

• Terms of reference effective date updated 

Section 8.3 – Emergency Coordination Centre (ECC) 

• Primary ECC location address updated to 181 Coldbrook Village Park Dr 

Section 9.2 – Plan Maintenance and Responsibility 

• Plan Revisions updated to reflect date of Change 1 to REMP 

  



 
 
 
Council Advisory Committee  May 10th, 2021 
 
Annex J – Primary ECC Layout 

• Updated to reflect layout 

within Municipality of the 

County of Kings, 181 

Coldbrook Village Park 

Drive 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annex L – Province of NS – 

Important Numbers 

• NS EMO Duty Officer Telephone Number updated 

• NS EMO Western Region EMPO amended to read ‘Region 4’ 

• Department of Lands and Forestry section amended (replace title Department of Natural 

Resources) 
 

Approval Timeline 

• 2021-03-18        Kings REMO REMPC Meeting 

• 2021-04-19        Kings REMO REMAC Meeting 

•  

• 2021-05-04        Wolfville COW 

• 2021-05-10        Kentville CAC 

• 2021-05-18        MoK COW 

• 2021-05-18        Wolfville Council (for approval) 

• 2021-05-25        Berwick COW 

• 2021-05-31        Kentville Council (for approval) 

• 2021-06-01        MoK Council (for approval) 

• 2021-06-08        Berwick Council (for approval) 



 

 

 



         





    

 Page 1 of 11  

 
 
 

Town of Kentville By-law 
Chapter ____ 

Alternative Voting 
 
1.0   Purpose 

1.1. This by-law shall be known as By-law Chapter ____ and may be cited as the 
“Alternative Voting By-law”. 

2.0   Definitions 

2.1 In this by-law, 

2.1.1 “Act” means the Municipal Elections Act, 1989 R.S.N.S. c. 300, as 
amended; 

2.1.2 “advance polling day” means advance polling day as defined in 
the Act and if Council has delegated its authority to fix a day to 
the Returning Officer, one other day fixed by the Returning Officer 
that is either Thursday, the ninth day before ordinary polling day, 
or Saturday the seventh day before ordinary polling day;  

2.1.3 “alternative polling days” means any hours and dates fixed by a 
resolution of Council for alternative voting; 

2.1.4 “alternative voting” means voting by telephone or via the internet 
and includes a combination of telephone and internet voting; 

2.1.5 “electronic ballot box” means a computer database in the system 
where cast internet ballots and telephone ballots are put; 

2.1.6 “candidate” means a person who has been nominated as a 
candidate pursuant to the Act; 

2.1.7 “Council” means the Council of the Town of Kentville; 

2.1.8 “Deputy Returning Officer” means a person appointed under the 
Act to preside over a polling station; 

2.1.9 “Education Act” means the Education Act, 1995-1996 S.N.S. c. 1, 
as amended;  

2.1.10 “election” means an election held pursuant to the Act including a 
school board election, a special election, and a plebiscite; 



Town of Kentville, By Law Chapter ____: Alternative Voting By-law 

 

Page 2 of 11 

2.1.11 “Election Officer” means an election official under the Act;  

2.1.12 “elector” and “electors” means a person or persons: 

2.1.12.1 qualified to vote pursuant to the Act and the Education 
Act; and 

2.1.12.2 entitled to vote for an election pursuant to section 7 of 
this by-law;  

2.1.13 “friend voter” means a friend who votes for an elector pursuant 
to section 12 of this by-law; 

2.1.14 “internet ballot” means an image of a ballot on a screen of a 
personal computing device, including all the choices available to 
an elector and the spaces in which an elector marks a vote; 

2.1.15 “list of electors” means: 

2.1.15.1 prior to the list of electors being completed and 
certified by the Returning Officer pursuant to the Act, 
the list of electors that has been amended and 
corrected by the Returning Officer pursuant to the Act; 
or 

2.1.15.2 the list of electors that has been completed and 
certified by the Returning Officer pursuant to the Act; 

2.1.16 “Town” means the Town of Kentville; 

2.1.17 “ordinary polling day” means an ordinary polling day as defined in 
the Act; 

2.1.18 “PIN” means the Personal Identification Number issued to: 

2.1.18.1 an elector for alternative voting on alternative polling 
days; or 

2.1.18.2 to a System Election Officer; 

2.1.19 “personal computing device” means an electronic device that may 
access the internet, including a computer, cellular phone, laptop, 
tablet, or gaming device; 

2.1.20 “plebiscite” means a plebiscite directed to be held by the Council; 



Town of Kentville, By Law Chapter ____: Alternative Voting By-law 

 

Page 3 of 11 

2.1.21 “procedures and forms” means the procedures and forms 
established by the Returning Officer; 

2.1.22 “proxy voter” means an elector who votes by a proxy pursuant to 
the Act; 

2.1.23 “Returning Officer” means a Returning Officer appointed pursuant 
to the Act; 

2.1.24 “seal” means to secure the electronic ballot box and prevent 
internet and telephone ballots from being cast; 

2.1.25 “spoiled ballot” means an internet ballot or telephone ballot that 
is accepted by the elector that:  

2.1.25.1 is not marked for any candidate in a race; or 

2.1.25.2 is marked by an elector indicating a refusal to cast a 
vote for any candidate in a race; 

2.1.26 “system” means the technology, including software, that:  

2.1.26.1 records and counts votes; and 

2.1.26.2 processes and stores the results of alternative voting 
during alternative polling days; 

2.1.27 “System Election Officer” means: 

2.1.27.1 a person who maintains, monitors, or audits the 
system, and 

2.1.27.2 a person who has access to the system beyond the 
access necessary to vote by alternative voting; 

2.1.28 “telephone ballot” means: 

2.1.28.1 an audio set of instructions which describes the voting 
choices available to an elector; and 

2.1.28.2 the marking of a selection by an elector by depressing 
the number on a touch tone keypad. 

3.0   Alternative Voting Permitted 

3.1 Subject to this by-law, alternative voting shall be permitted on alternative 
polling days. 



Town of Kentville, By Law Chapter ____: Alternative Voting By-law 

 

Page 4 of 11 

3.2 Council may, by resolution, provide that voting by a telephone and by a 
personal computing device shall be the only means of voting for an election. 

4.0   Notification of Electors 

4.1 The Returning Officer shall cause notice of alternative polling days to be 
published in a newspaper circulating in the Town or published on the Town’s 
website. 

4.2 The notice of alternative polling days shall: 

4.2.1 identify the alternative polling days for alternative voting; and 

4.2.2 inform the elector that telephone voting and internet voting is 
permitted during alternative polling days. 

4.3 The notice may include any other information the Returning Officer deems 
necessary. 

5.0   Form of Telephone and Internet Ballots 

5.1 A telephone ballot and internet ballot shall: 

5.1.1 identify by the title “Election for Mayor” or “Election for 
Councillor” or “Election for a Member of Conseil Scolaire Acadian 

Provincial (CSAP)”, as the case may be; 

5.1.2 identify the names or names by which they are commonly known 
of the candidates with given names followed by surnames, 
arranged alphabetically in order of their surnames and, where 
necessary, their given names; and  

5.1.3 warn the elector to “vote for one candidate only” or “vote for not 
more than (the number of candidates to be elected) candidates”, 
as the case may be. 

5.2 No title, honour, decoration or degree shall be included with a candidate(s) 
name on an internet ballot or telephone ballot. 

6.0   Oath 

6.1 Any oath that is authorized or required shall be made: 

6.1.1 in the form specified by the procedures and forms; or 

6.1.2 if the form is not specified by the procedures and forms, in the 
form required by the Act. 



Town of Kentville, By Law Chapter ____: Alternative Voting By-law 

 

Page 5 of 11 

7.0   Elector 

7.1 No person shall vote by alternative voting unless: 

7.1.1 the person’s name appears on the applicable list of electors; or 

7.1.2 the person is added to the applicable list of electors pursuant to 
section 36 of the Act. 

7.2 The Returning Officer may attend a residence of an elector, a facility where 
an elector is located, or any other location the Returning Officer deems 
appropriate for the purpose of facilitating alternative voting or compiling the 
list of electors pursuant to section 36 of the Act. 

8.0   Polling Station for Alternative Voting 

8.1 If Council decides that voting by a telephone and by a personal computing 
device are the only means of voting for an election, the Returning Officer 
shall establish at least one polling station for alternative voting and each 
polling station established shall be equipped with at least one device that is 
capable of casting either an internet ballot or telephone ballot. 

8.2 The polling station for alternative voting shall be: 

8.2.1 available for electors who are voting with a friend voter and for 
any other electors; 

8.2.2 open on each advance polling day and on ordinary polling day; 
and 

8.2.3 on such other days and times as decided by the Returning Officer. 

9.0   Polling Locations for Alternative Voting 

9.1 In addition to establishing at least one polling station, the Returning Officer 
may establish one or more polling locations for alternative voting during 
alternative polling days. 

9.2 A polling location may be at such places and during such times as may be 
determined by the Returning Officer and such location shall be equipped 
with at least one device that is capable of casting either an internet ballot or 
telephone ballot. 

9.3 A polling location established by the Returning Officer is not a polling station 
within the meaning of the Act. 

 



Town of Kentville, By Law Chapter ____: Alternative Voting By-law 

 

Page 6 of 11 

10.0 Notification and Attendance at Polling Location 

10.1 The Returning Officer shall provide each candidate with at least forty-
eight (48) hours notice of a polling location. 

10.2 A candidate officially nominated or their official agent may appoint one 
or more agents to represent the candidate at each polling location. 

10.3 An agent may absent himself or herself from and return to a polling 
location from time to time while the polling location is open. 

10.4 Only one agent for each candidate shall be entitled to remain in the 
polling location at any one time while the polling location is open. 

10.5 Upon exhibiting the appointment to the deputy returning officer or 
Returning Officer and without taking an oath, the official agent, other 
than a candidate acting as official agent, may represent a candidate in 
any polling location in the same manner as, and in addition to, an agent. 

11.0 Proxy Voting 

11.1 A proxy voter shall not vote for an elector by alternative voting. 

12.0 Friend Voting 

12.1 A friend voter shall only vote for an elector by alternative voting if:  

12.1.1 an elector is unable to vote because 

12.1.1.1 the elector is blind; 

12.1.1.2 the elector cannot read; or 

12.1.1.3 the elector has a physical disability that prevents him 
or her from voting by alternative voting; 

and 

12.1.2  the elector and the friend appear, in person, before the Returning 
Officer or the Deputy Returning Officer and take the prescribed 
oaths. 

12.2 A candidate shall not act as a friend voter unless the elector is a child, 
grandchild, brother, sister, parent, grandparent, or spouse of the candidate. 



Town of Kentville, By Law Chapter ____: Alternative Voting By-law 

 

Page 7 of 11 

12.3 The elector shall take an oath in the prescribed form set out in the 
procedures and forms providing that he or she is incapable of voting without 
assistance. 

12.4 The friend of the elector shall take an oath in the prescribed form set out 
in the procedures and forms that: 

12.4.1 the friend has not previously acted as a friend for any other 
elector in the election other than an elector who is a child, 
grandchild, brother, sister, parent, grandparent, or spouse of the 
friend of the elector; 

12.4.2 the friend will mark the ballot as requested by the elector; and 

12.4.3 the friend will keep secret the choice of the elector.  

12.5 The Returning Officer shall enter in the poll book: 

12.5.1 the reason why the elector is unable to vote;  

12.5.2 the name of the friend; and 

12.5.3 the fact that the oaths were taken. 

13.0 System Election Officer 

13.1 A System Election Officer shall have access to the system prior to the 
commencement of alternative voting to verify the count for each candidate is 
zero. 

13.2 Notwithstanding the day and time set for alternative voting, alternative 
voting shall not commence until the count for each of the candidates is zero. 

13.3 A System Election Officer shall comply with the procedures and forms 
established by the Returning Officer pursuant to the Act. 

14.0 Voting 

14.1 The system shall put internet ballots and telephone ballots cast by an elector 
in the electronic ballot box. 

14.2 The system shall put spoiled ballots in the electronic ballot box. 

 

 

 



Town of Kentville, By Law Chapter ____: Alternative Voting By-law 

 

Page 8 of 11 

15.0 Seal 

15.1 Where alternative voting closes before the close of the polls on ordinary 
polling day, the system shall seal the electronic ballot box until after the close 
of the poll on ordinary polling day. 

16.0 List of persons who voted 

16.1 Where alternative voting closes before the close of the polls on ordinary 
polling day, the system shall: 

16.1.1 generate a list of all electors who voted by alternative voting; and 

16.1.2 on the applicable list of electors, cause a line to be drawn through 
the names of all the electors who voted during alternative polling 
days. 

16.2 A printed or electronic copy of the lists under section 16 shall be delivered to 
the Returning Officer within 24 hours of the close of alternative voting. 

16.3 Where alternative voting closes at the close of the polls on ordinary polling 
day, the system shall generate a list of all electors who voted by alternative 
voting. 

17.0 Counting 

17.1 At the close of ordinary polling day, the system shall generate a count of the 
telephone ballots and internet ballots in the electronic ballot box that were 
cast for each candidate during alternative polling days. 

17.2 In counting the votes that were cast for each candidate during alternative 
polling days, the system shall count spoiled ballots. 

18.0 Tallying of Spoiled Ballots 

18.1 At the close of ordinary polling day, the system shall tally the number of 
spoiled ballots that were cast during alternative polling days and the tally 
shall be delivered to the Returning Officer. 

19.0 Recount by System 

19.1 In the event of a recount, the system shall regenerate the election count 
and a printed copy of the regenerated count shall be given to the Returning 
Officer. 

19.2 If the initial count and the regenerated count match, the regenerated 
count shall be the final count of the votes cast by alternative voting. 



Town of Kentville, By Law Chapter ____: Alternative Voting By-law 

 

Page 9 of 11 

19.3 If the regenerated count and the initial count do not match, the 
Returning Officer shall: 

19.3.1 direct one final count be regenerated by the system of the votes 
cast by alternative voting, and 

19.3.2 attend while the final count is being regenerated. 

19.4 The regenerated final count pursuant to section 19.3 shall be the final 
count of the votes cast by alternative voting. 

20.0 Secrecy 

20.1  An Election Officer and System Election Officer shall maintain and aid in 
maintaining the secrecy of the voting.  

20.2 Every person in attendance at a polling station, or at the counting of the 
votes, shall maintain and aid in maintaining the secrecy of the voting. 

21.0 Severability 

21.1 If a court of competent jurisdiction should declare any section or part of a 
section of this by-law to be invalid, such section or part of a section shall not 
be construed as having persuaded or influenced Council to pass the 
remainder of the by-law and it is hereby declared that the remainder of the 
by-law shall be valid and shall remain in force. 

22.0 Prohibitions 

22.1 No person shall: 

22.1.1 use another person’s PIN to vote or access the system unless the 
person is a friend voter; 

22.1.2 take, seize, or deprive an elector of his or her PIN; or 

22.1.3 sell, gift, transfer, assign or purchase a PIN. 

22.2 No person shall: 

22.2.1 interfere or attempt to interfere with an elector who is casting an 
internet ballot or telephone ballot; or 

22.2.2 interfere or attempt to interfere with alternative voting. 

22.3 No 

22.3.1 candidate, 



Town of Kentville, By Law Chapter ____: Alternative Voting By-law 

 

Page 10 of 11 

22.3.2 recognized agent, or 

22.3.3 person acting on behalf of or in support of a candidate, 

shall provide a person with a personal computing device or telephone for 
the purposes of casting an internet ballot or a telephone ballot. 

23.0 Offences and Penalty 

23.1 A person who: 

23.1.1 violates any provision of this by-law; or 

23.1.2 makes a false statement in a declaration; or 

23.1.3 permits anything to be done in violation of any provision of this 
by-law; 

is guilty of an offence. 

23.2 A person who contravenes section 23.1 is guilty of an offence and is liable 
on summary conviction  

23.2.1.1 to a fine of not less than five thousand dollars and not 
more than ten thousand dollars and in default of 
payment thereof to imprisonment for a term of not 
more than one year; 

23.2.1.2 to imprisonment for a term of two years less a day; or 

23.2.1.3 to a fine of not less than five thousand dollars and not 
more than ten thousand dollars and to imprisonment 
for a term of two years less a day. 

23.3 In determining a penalty under section 23.2, a judge shall take into 
account:  

23.3.1 the number of votes attempted to be interfered with; 

23.3.2 the number of votes interfered with; and 

23.3.3 any potential interference with the outcome of an election.  

24.0 Repeal 

24.1 Chapter 98 of the Town by-laws entitled Alternative Voting By-law is 
hereby repealed. 



Town of Kentville, By Law Chapter ____: Alternative Voting By-law 

 

Page 11 of 11 

 

Clerk’s Annotation For Official By-law Book 

Date of first reading:                  
Date of advertisement of Notice of Intent to Consider:        
Date of second reading:       
*Date of advertisement of Passage of by-law:          
Date of mailing to Minister a certified copy of by-law:            
 
I certify that this Alternative Voting By-law was adopted by Council and published as 
indicated above. 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Clerk        Date 
 
*Effective Date of the by-law unless otherwise specified in the by-law 
 



 

 

 



         



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



Through the consultation process, we

learned that there is a STRONG desire for

Kentville to be more welcoming and

diverse.  We also heard that the citizens

of Kentville have an overwhelming sense

of pride for their beautiful town and have

many suggestions to share when it

comes to making our community more

accessible and welcoming! 

The Kentville Accessibility Action Plan was

created in response to the priorities

outlined by the Province of Nova Scotia in

the Access by Design 2030 legislation.

The Kentville Accessibility Plan charts the

way forward as we work to create a more

inclusive, accessible, welcoming

community in Kentville that exists and

operates from a place of peace and

friendship.

“Our vision is for Kentville to be a healthy vibrant integrated and welcoming community where all

citizens and visitors can live work and play in an environment that promotes a fulfilling quality of

life. We acknowledge that currently there are barriers to achieving this vision.”

Nova Scotia has the highest rate of people with

disabilities in Canada, nearly one person in three

There are different types of disabilities which include: physical,

visual, hearing, mental health, intellectual and learning

disabilities. Not all disabilities are obvious!

kentv ille Accessibility 

Highlights and
Background

act ion Plan



To help guide the public engagement

process we used the Medicine Wheel -

a comprehensive tool, created by

Indigenous peoples, that looks at all

interconnected systems. Through the

Medicine Wheel we take into account

our relationship with the land.  For

example, the Miner’s Marsh Walk & Roll

engagement session enabled

enjoyment of the outdoors while the

physical and emotional needs of

community were explored! 

Community Knowledge

BarriersB
ar

rie
rs

R
e

co
m

m
en

ded Actions

The Rick Hansen Foundation

Accessibility Certification (RHFAC) is a

lens through which to assess

accessibility. RHFAC ensures people

with disabilities have direct input into the

vision and details of how to create truly

inclusive places. RHFAC has a rating

system and certification process

designed by people with disabilities to

allow transparency, accountability, and

measurable data.

The 9 Pillars of Accessibility:

G
o

o
d

s 
a

n
d

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

B
u

ilt
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

A
w

a
re

n
e

ss

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

H
u

m
a

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

d
D

e
si

g
n

Each pillar was assessed through the lens of Inclusion in Action
and the Medicine Wheel Framework to create an action plan. 

Kentville resides within the ancestral territory of the Mi’kmaq people. We

acknowledge that our work is located within unceded and unsurrendered Mi’kmaq

Territory.  we all have a responsibility and accountability to uphold in the

process of Truth and Reconciliation. 

Recommended
A

ctio
n
s



changes and policy implementation.

What's Next?

There are over 30 recommendations in the Kentville
Accessibility Action Plan that are designed to help Kentville

become a more accessible and welcoming community!

For more information, please contact Rachel Bedingfield,

Director of Parks and Recreation at

rbedingfield@kentville.ca or 902.679.2541

The full Accessibility Plan is

available at www.kentville.ca

More than 600 citizens participated

directly in engagement sessions

Develop Standards
to meet the recommended benchmarks;

Build Capacity and Awareness
through training and promotion of inclusive opportunities;

Collaborate and Support
with equity seeking groups and agencies and build relationships of mutual respect and support;

support Compliance and Enforcement

Monitor and Evaluate 

of strategies that clearly identify standards and targets;



 



 

 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

Name:  Paula Huntley 

Date: May 31,2021 

Date of Last Council Meeting Attended:  April 26,2021 

Date of Last Council Advisory Meeting 
Attended:  

May 10,2021 

Date of Last Governance Session Attended:  

Committee Meeting Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Committee Synopsis 

April 28/21 
Valley REN -Liason Oversight 
Committee 

New Membership discussion, Strategic 
planning  

April 28/21 Kings Transit  
Pat Meagher reviewed the transit 
emergency plan, discussed budgets & 
plan for buses from Halifax 

April 28/21 Mentoring Plus Strategy 
Correspondence/zoom with coordinator 
on moving forward in midst of COVID 

April 29/21 Accessibility  
Review of the new plan role out to 
council/FB presentation-people involved  

May 2021 Diversity  Cancelled  

April 27/21 
Kings Transit Recruitment 
Committee 

Participated in the interview process for 
hiring of a new General Manager-
interviews of applicants, discussions of 
roles and roll out information to the board 
for decisions on the applicants 

May 5/21 
Kings Transit Recruitment  
Committee 

Continuation of Interviewing of applicants 

May 7/21 
Kings Transit Recruitment 

Committee 

Interviewing of applicants & discussion of 
choices with members of recruitment 
committee 

May 11/21 
Kings Transit Recruitment 
Committee 

Final meeting on chosen applicant & 
discussion of timing of hiring 

May 19/21 Kings Point to Point transit 

Discussion of operating stats/April 
financial report, approval of policies & 
procedures report, Ridership decrease 
report, Hiring committee report for new 
manager interviews, AGM date/location. 
Also looking for new board members to 
replace those leaving. 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

May 26/21 Kings Transit  

Valley public transit riders association 
presentation, board chair update, April 
ridership & revenue report, Capital 
budget 2021/22-2027/28 

May 20/21 Public Participation Meeting 

Discussion/ overview of proposal of the 

land use bylaw (LUB) & Municipal 
planning strategy (MPS) 

May 27/21 Accessibility committee  

Town of Kentville Event Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Event Synopsis 

May 11/21 COVID Survey Survey for Small businesses 

   

Conference Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Conference Synopsis 

May 6/21 NSFM Spring Conference 
Multiple speakers over the 2 days 
including topics- Roads, Committee needs 
for members, Housing,  

May 7/21 NSFM Spring conference 

Info on relaunch of asset management 
course with climate change info added, 

keynote speaker Bill Carr attended, 
municipalities were in groups to discuss 
multiple topics of their work. 

May 27/21 
Global Solutions Summit held 
in Berlin 

World policy Forum digital virtual event 
on global challenges 

May 28/21 
Global Solutions Summit held 
in Berlin 

Purpose, Policy & Corporate responsibility 
discussion & also economic prosperity 
urgency -the need for system changes to 
address the challenges rather than 
contribute to them. 

May 27/21 
100 days with Joe Biden on 
Canadian business 

Webinar with the EDC-Export 
Development Canada 

Committee Meeting Synopsis – Completed by Committee Representative only 

Detail Synopsis 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

Committee 
Name 

 
Meeting 
Date: 

 
 
 
 

Meeting 
Highlights: 

 

Budget: 
 

New Projects: 
 

Policy Changes: 
 

Misc Events 

Date Synopsis 

May 2021 

Correspondence with residents on topics- FB Live meetings/Acronyms 
usage, Layton St divide needing to be fixed, Grant St drain, 3way stop on 
Grant St (traffic going too fast and not stopping), Belcher St property issue 
with dog owners throwing their used dog bags in their front drain ditch. 
Discussions with residents on the following topics: 
Fidget blankets for KINGS POINT TO POINT 
Entrance to trail vandalism and clean up 
Cornwallis Street name change 
PACE Program 

Noise bylaw inquires 
Macdonald avenue/paving & Infrastructure 

May 2021 
Meetings on Personal Mentorship/Governance 
 

May 2021 

Asset MGMT/Climate change course – offered by NSFM 

Climate change Leadership 4 week course – offered by Cornell University, 
(personally paid for- not paid by tax payers) 
These courses are being taken in order to be able to contribute to my 
involvement in the Partners for Climate Partners role & Budget plans 
understanding/Asset MGMT 

•  

April 30/21 Q&A with Kody Blois/AVCC -Federal Budget 

April 27/21 Electric Vehicle City -Pilot Program  

May 5th & 7th Correspondence with Audit Committee -Kings Transit 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

May 12/21 Eco Tourism /Grassroots 

May 12/21 Stats Canada/Atlantic Provinces Economic Council -COVID 1 year later 

May 4/21 FCM Webinar 

May 18/21 Global Climate Accountability Act- Elizabeth May talks with world federalists 

May 12/21 Driving into the Future: Sustainability & Innovation in tomorrow’s cars 

May 13/21 FCM/federation of Canadian Municipalities -Lets talk about water 

May 18/21 Toastmasters-Breaking the glass ceiling  

May 17/21 
Q&A with Gov’t and business community groups from each town- 
Kentville’s business community KBC was in attendance. 

May 18/21 
Q & A with Gov’t representatives and economic groups -Valley REN, 

ACOA,etc. 

May 21/21 
Breakfast/coffee meeting with Mayor on multiple topics & upcoming 
training sessions 

May 26/21 Removing barriers for Disabilities during COVID times 

  

 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

Name:  Cathy Maxwell 

Date: May 25, 2021 

Date of Last Council Meeting Attended:  April 26, 2021 

Date of Last Council Advisory Meeting 
Attended:  

May 10, 2021 

Date of Last Governance Session Attended:  

Committee Meeting Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Committee Synopsis 

April 29, 2021 Accessibility Committee See attached report 

May 22, 2021 Student Bursary Committee See attached report 

   

   

   

Town of Kentville Event Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Event Synopsis 

May 20,2021 Public Participation Meeting 

A meeting to allow the public to have 

input on various changes being proposed 

to our MPS and LUB. 

 

Committee Meeting Synopsis – Completed by Committee Representative only 

Detail Synopsis 

Committee 

Name 
 

 
Meeting 

Date: 
May 20/21 

Accessibility 

Committee 

 

During this meeting we 

discussed how the presentation 

of the Accessibility Plan to the 

  



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

 May CAC meeting would unfold. 

We also tossed around ideas of 

how a public celebration might 

also unfold if the plan is 

accepted by Council at the May 

Meeting. The committee was 

informed that the plan is already 

impacting decisions being made 

at town hall each workday.  

Detail Synopsis 

Committee 

Name________ 

Student 

Bursary 

Committee 
 

We had 4 applications for 

student bursaries from the town 

of Kentville this year. We did not 

have a candidate that fulfilled 

the requirements for that Nola 

Folker Hill Bursary and as a 

result the committee decided 

not to award that bursary this 

year. Instead, the committee 

recommends that Council award 

4 - $500.00 bursaries. After 

graduation ceremonies take 

place at the high schools, I will 

announce who our recipients 

are.  

I would like to thank retired 

teachers: Mrs. Wendy Hood and 

Mrs. Marina DeWolfe for their 

assistance on this committee 

once again this year. 

Meeting 

Date: 
May 22/21 

 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

 

 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

Name:  Cate Savage  

Date: May 25th  

Date of Last Council Meeting Attended:  April 26th  

Date of Last Council Advisory Meeting Attended:  
May 1oth 
 

Committee Meeting Attendance and Synopsis 
 

 
Committee Synopsis 

May 20th  RSC  

Update operations and compliance  

6 on demand heaters not working (taking time 

to get parts and maintenance done) the hot 

water helps keep the screens clean therefore 

BOD and TSS up.  

More PSA of what NOT to put down the 

toilet. 

In camera discussion on the desludging 

(sewer smell)  

May 20th   IAC  

Review and recommendations with IA – 

balance of portfolio just north of 14 million.  

We have 1.1 million coming due this June 

2021 and this wish of the committee under the 

direction of the IA is that we commence a 

different direction with the funds (awaiting 

approval from the Minister for the proposed 

IPS changes)  - pretty much the same report 

as last month – IPS is now with the 

department of finance and it appears that upon 

sign off the committee can make the 

recommended changes.  

May 12th  KBC Board Meeting  Minutes and Agenda available upon request  



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

May 20th  MPS LUB PP Meeting  

Director Gentleman presented the 

housekeeping items to clean up the MPS and 

LUB   

   

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Kentville Event Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Event/Conference Synopsis 

    

   

 

Misc Events 
Date Synopsis 

April 22 
Meeting with Board Chair – KBC- purpose to review my role with the board as DM who 

now sits on the board – liaison between council and the board 

April 23rd  REN SP Session  

May 6/7  NSFM – Spring Conference  

  

Expenses 
This month Year to Date 

  

 
 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

 



 

representatives from the Government 

of Nova Scotia



 



 

 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 1 

Name:  Sandra Snow 

Date: 26 May 2021 

Date of Last Council Meeting Attended:  26 April 2021 
Date of Last Council Advisory Meeting 
Attended:  10 May 2021 

Date of Last Governance Session Attended: N/A 

Committee Meeting Attendance and Synopsis 
Date Committee Synopsis 

21 Apr 21 Planning Meeting 
Updates to the Municipal Planning 
Strategy (MPS) and Land Use Bylaw 
(LUB) 

23 Apr 21 VREN/LOC Meeting VREN strategic planning session for the 
LOC 

26 Apr 21 NSFM Special Board Meeting In camera labour and legal 

26 Apr 21 Council Meeting 
Withdrawal from reserves 
Sewer Operational and Capital Budgets 
TOK Operational and Capital Budgets 

28 Apr 21 VREN LOC Meeting See below 

28 Apr 21 NSFM Mayors/wardens/CAOs Briefing by the Affordable Housing 
Commission 

29 Apr 21  VREN Economic Recovery Follow-up on on-going recovery initiatives 

29 Apr 21 VREN Board Meeting On-going business 

30 Apr 21 IMSA Working Group 
Presentation and discussion on shared 
service models used by other municipal 
entities 

30 Apr 21 MFC Board Meeting Review of funding application 

6 May 21 Valley REAP Team Meeting Review of work and update on future 
work - survey 

10 May 21 CAC Meeting 
Reports from staff 
Policy Revision G28 Grants to 
Organizations 
REMO Emergency Management Plan 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 2 

Alternate Voting Bylaw 
Accessibility Plan 

13 May 21 Digital Coffee with President of 
NSFM 

Chat about on-going issues  with code of 
conduct and in-camera meetings 

14 May 21 IMSA Working Group Briefing by a lawyer on provisions for 
inclusion in future agreements 

18 May 21 Valley REAP Team Competitive Advantage 

20 May 21 VREN Economic Recovery The continuing lockdown is creating 
hardship for small business in the Valley 

20 May 21 VREN Strategic Planning 
Session 

Review of the input for the mission and 
vision statements from various groups 
and meetings 

20 May 21 Town of Kentville Planning 
Meeting 

MPS Public Participation meeting was held 
in support of housekeeping changes 
being considered for the MPS 

Conference Attendance and Synopsis 
Date Conference Synopsis 

28 Apr 21 GMF Community Building 
Retrofit 

FCM webinar on the Green Municipal 
Fund Community Building grants and 
criteria 

6-7 May 21 NSFM Spring Conference 

The Spring Conference was opened by 
Acting President Amanda McDougall.  The 
keynote speaker was Bill Carr who 
engaged and entertained with a 
discussion on Living with Resilience, it is 
not about going back but bouncing 
forward.  Minister Maguire took time to 
welcome and take questions.  The 
remainder of the morning was filled with 
Collaboration Success stories.  The 
afternoon briefing was a great 
introduction to Asset Management.  The 
day was capped off with a few interactive 
games.  Day 2 began with the 
presentation Getting Regulations Right 
with a presentation by the Nova Scotia 
Office of Regulatory Affairs and Service 
Effectiveness, excellent presentation.  
Followed by the Caucus meetings. 

19 May 21 NS Innovation Tour The Brookfield Institute for Innovation + 
Entrepreneurship's Joshua Zachariah and 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 3 

Mark Hazelden presented the just 
recently completed Nova Scotia Inclusive 
Innovation Monitor developed in 
partnership with ONSIDE. 

Committee Meeting Synopsis – Completed by Committee Representative only 
Detail Synopsis 

Committee 
Name 

VREN Liaison and Oversight 
Committee 

Meeting 
Date: April 28, 2021 

Meeting 
Highlights: 

Board Recruitment report – two new candidates approved 

Budget: 
Funding Matrix – no change to the budget from 2020-2021 
 

New Projects: 
N/A 

Policy Changes: 

Provincial Changes to Agreement (attached) 
Terms of Reference – LOC Committee 
Terms of Reference - Chair 
Terms of Reference - Vice Chair 
VREN Audit Committee – CAO 

Misc Events 
Date Synopsis 

28 Apr 21 Meeting with Burnell Lyons 

3 May 21 COVID Vaccination 

3 May 21 2021 Census Kick-Off event 

11 May 21 Presentation to the RCAF Basic Military Training course at Aldershot 

12 May 21 Atlantic Region HCol Meeting 

13 May 21 HCol Conversation with DWAO and SMR 

14 May 21 REAP NS Friday Morning coffee with Deputy Minister Miller and Don 
Bureaux 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 4 

19 May 21 Telecon with Councillor Jim Winsor wrt VREN LOC business 

20 May 21 Meeting with Councillor Huntley - mentoring 

 



1 
 

26 May 2021 

 

RE: Multi-Purpose Facility RFP 

Background: 
Council supported the proposed RFP process to assess the 

need for a multi purpose facility in the Valley.   There is a 

requirement to establish a working committee composed of 

one elected official, the CAO and one staff person to attend 

meetings to pick and work with the consultant.  The CAOs are 

at the point of bringing this group together and require the 

name of an elected representative?   

 
Recommendation:  
That the Multi-Purpose Facility RFP committee is added to the 
Committees of Kentville as an ADHOC Committee; 
And further, it is recommended that Councillor Gillian Yorke 
sit on this committee as the elected representative for the 
Town of Kentville Council. 

 
Motion: Council adopt the recommendation for the 
ADHOC committee and appointment as presented. 

 

 

 

Kindest Regards  

 

 

Sandra Snow, Mayor 

Town of Kentville  

 

Mayor   

Sandra Snow 

354 Main Street 

Kentville, NS 

B4N 1K6

 

 



PURPOSE

These guidelines are premised on an ‘informed
agreement’ decision making model (see below).
This approach acknowledges the time it takes to
build consensus or ‘unanimous agreement’ while
rejecting the potential conflicting nature of a
‘simple majority’. It provides a transparent process
to achieve ‘informed agreement’ in that everyone
can support implementation of the decision even
if they didn’t vote for it because there was:

•• AAddeeqquuaattee  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn available for decision
makers

•• GGoooodd  ddeebbaattee to ensure views are heard and
examined

CONSENSUS

INFORMED AGREEMENT
ADEQUATE INFORMATION

GOOD DEBATE

SIMPLE MAJORITY

IMPOSED

These guidelines include the following:

For information on strategic facilitation, governance development and leadership training services contact:
Gordon McIntosh PhD, CLGM   250-655-7455 or 250-881-0261   gmcintosh@lglinstitute.com

IINNFFOORRMMAATTIIOONN    TTOOOOLLSS

1.  The decision-
making process

1.  Decision-making 
Flow Chart

2.  Decision-making
information

2.  Follow-up Action List
(FUAL)

3.  Business meetings 
of the Board

3.  Request for Decision
(RFD)

4.  Criteria for strategic
decision-making

4.  Council Direction
Request (CDR)

A
G
R
E
E
M
E
N
T
>Decision-Making

GUIDELINES

?



1THE DECISION-MAKING
PROCESS

To clarify the steps of the decision-making process
(see attachment 1) – the submission, initial
referrals, resolution and follow-up

The Submission

AAllll  aaggeennddaa  iitteemmss should have sufficient
information, staff advice and clarity for  Council to
debate the matter and make a decision – yes, no
or refer/defer.  It is the right of any councillor to
request that more information be available before
a decision is made. It is the responsibility of
Council to determine if there is adequate
information to achieve informed agreement; and
if not, to refer the item for further information.

RReegguullaarr  aaggeennddaa  iitteemmss are usually brought
forward from a previous meeting or they are
standing items that reoccur frequently.  These
items should have a verbal or written staff report
as required with adequate information to make a
decision.  If there is insufficient information the
item should be referred to staff for further
analysis.

NNeeww  bbuussiinneessss  iitteemmss that arise between meetings
should be brought to Council through the
following process:

All new agenda items must be submitted through
the Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) or
designate.  Items submitted to the Chief Elected
Official (CEO - Mayor) will be forwarded to the
CAO.

If an item is submitted by a council member, the
item goes on the agenda.  The CEO and CAO may
review the draft agenda with the elected official
submitting the item to maximize the success of the
item.  It is Council that will determine whether the
item is to remain on the agenda for discussion.  

All staff submissions are subject to the discretion
of the CAO.

MMaatttteerrss  aarriissiinngg  aatt  tthhee  mmeeeettiinngg may be
introduced by the CAO or council member for
inclusion on the agenda at the discretion of
Council.  

New items and matters arising should be
introduced and then rreeffeerrrreedd for further analysis
if there is any question as to whether the item
requires more information.

RReessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess for agenda items are:

• Council – approval of all agenda items

• CEO – review agenda with CAO and advise
councillors on their submissions

• CAO – review draft agenda with CEO and
consult with staff

Initial Referrals

The four decision choices for Council on agenda
items are:

• Accept as information – no decision is required

• Make a decision – yes or no (see ‘the
resolution’)

• Refer the item – more information is required
to achieve an informed agreement

• Defer the item – more time is required to
ensure a good debate

Referrals to staff occur when more information is
required regarding legislative, financial and staff
workload implications.

• The referral resolution should state what
further information is required

• All staff referrals must go through the CAO

Referrals to a Committee occurs when more
information is required regarding policy, public
interest and strategic direction implications.

• The referral resolution should state what
further information is required

• The CAO assigns staff to prepare the necessary
information for the committee

• All committee responses must be reviewed for
comment by the CAO 

A Deferral or tabling motions are used when
discussion is moving away from the topic and
becoming personal or when there is some
distraction preventing ‘good debate’. 

For information on strategic facilitation, governance development and leadership training services contact:
Gordon McIntosh PhD, CLGM   250-655-7455 or 250-881-0261   gmcintosh@lglinstitute.com



Responsibilities for referrals and deferrals are:

• Council – state expectations within the
resolution 

• CEO – ensure clear directions and
responsibilities

• CAO – seek clarity regarding expectations at
the time of the resolution

The Resolution

All Council direction to staff should be given by
way of resolution or ‘by consent’ and noted in the
meeting minutes.  This ensures clarity as to the
intent of the Council, documentation of the
direction, and accountability on the part of staff
for follow-up.

The key elements of an effective resolution (or
notation for minor items) include:

• Why – the key results or outcomes that Council
is looking for

• Who – who will take the lead responsibility for
actioning the resolution

• When – targets for involvement of Council in
the future

• What – the preferred response option to
achieve the desired outcome

Responsibilities for resolution clarity are:

• Council – wording for self-initiated resolutions
prior to or during the meeting

• CEO – facilitate clarity, closure or deferral of
resolutions during the meeting

• CAO – advise Council on resolutions

Follow-up

All Council directions can be itemized on a Follow-
up Action List (see tool #2) to ensure clear
expectations regarding action, monitoring
progress, achieving results, and seeing the volume
of Council directives. Monitoring the requests of
Council is useful to:

• Think about the impact on strategic priorities
and day-to-day activities

• Avoid expectations Council may have of staff
that encroach on their personal time

• Give Council confidence that its directions are
being acted upon

• Celebrate achievement and results

The key features of a Follow-up Action List (FUAL)
include:

• A cumulative list of action items from all
meetings (identify source, meeting, date)

• Indicates What, Who and When for each item

• Each action item should have no more than
five words

• FUAL items should be the result of Council
consent or resolution

• Items can be ordered by the date of origin,
person responsible or target date

The management of the Follow-up Action List
(FUAL) requires:

• The development of the list and dates by the
CAO with staff

• The distribution of the list to staff and Council
within three days of the meeting

• Updating of FUAL at each regular council
meeting

• Delete items or change targets only with
Council’s agreement 

• Review of the list on a quarterly basis to assess
the continued relevance of items

• Review the list when the CAO thinks it is
beyond staff’s capacity

Responsibilities for the FUAL are:

• Council – review and disposition of FUAL items

• CEO – facilitate review at each business
meeting or strategy session

• CAO – preparation and updating with staff

For information on strategic facilitation, governance development and leadership training services contact:
Gordon McIntosh PhD, CLGM   250-655-7455 or 250-881-0261   gmcintosh@lglinstitute.com



2DECISION-MAKING
INFORMATION

To clarify and provide the appropriate information
required for decision makers to debate and decide
on an item

Request for Decision

The Request for Decision (see tool #3 RFD) is
intended to serve as an executive summary of the
key information required for decision makers. It is
a useful format to:
• Ensure Council is clear and in agreement on

what ‘adequate information’ means
• Establish what is required of staff in preparing

staff reports
• Provide a one page summary so there is a

quick reference for decision makers
• Ensure that CAO has oversight over all items

going to Council

The key aspects of the issue include:
• The key problem – how has the issue been

defined?
• The desired outcome – if the issue was

resolved, what would the result(s) be?
• The preferred option – the best alternative to

achieve the desired outcome
• Action Plan – key steps to implement the

preferred option

The key implications for the recommendation
should include:
• Background information – reports and data
• Financial implications – current or future

budget
• Organizational implications – Council and staff

time
• Strategic implications – consistency with

strategic directions and priorities
• Policy implications – legislation, previous

resolutions or policies

Responsibilities for the direction request are:
• Council  – approval of standard format
• CEO – facilitate reference to the RFD
• CAO – acquire complete information from staff

3MEETINGS

To describe the key types of meetings of Council

The Business Meeting

The Business Meeting (including closed session or
in-camera) is guided by a meeting procedures
bylaw. Its primary purpose is to make a decision.

The Strategy Session 

The intent of the Strategy Session is to provide a
venue for more informal discussion of matters
that are not decision items. Its primary purpose to
develop a strategic direction so that:
• Council reaches agreement on its expectations

for a strategic topic
• Staff are clear on council expectations to guide

its work in advising Council

The Strategy Session should be a regularly scheduled
event with the expectation that all members of
Council will be present.  It may also be referred to as
(and is) the Committee of the Whole meeting.

The intent of agenda items for the Strategy
Session agenda includes:
• To enhance understanding of an issue by

meeting with relevant stakeholders
• To clarify expectations and improve the

Council/staff working relationship
• To explore options to deal with an issue and

provide direction to staff
• To undertake training to improve organization

and individual effectiveness
• To review and update the strategic plan and

priority work programs

The Council Direction Request (CDR) form can be
used help Council communicate: 
• The key problem – how has the issue been

defined?
• The desired outcome – if the issue was

resolved, what would the result(s) be?
• The possible preferred options to be pursued

Responsibilities for Strategy Sessions are:
• Council – target dates and outcomes for

strategic direction discussions
• CEO – facilitate expectations regarding target

dates
• CAO – prepare necessary information and

maintain schedule

For information on strategic facilitation, governance development and leadership training services contact:
Gordon McIntosh PhD, CLGM   250-655-7455 or 250-881-0261   gmcintosh@lglinstitute.com



DDEECCIISSIIOONN  MMAAKKIINNGG  FFLLOOWW  CCHHAARRTT

MATTERS
ARISING

NEW 
AGENDA 
ITEM

REGULAR
ITEM

COUNCIL

Request for
Decision

AGENDA

RESOLUTION

FOLLOW-UP
ACTION LIST

Direction
Request

CAO

SUBMIT

RECOMMEND

IMPLEMENT
& MONITOR

REFER

DISCUSS

DEBATE - DEFER
REFER or DECIDE

STRATEGY
SESSION

COMMITTEE/ 
BOARD

STAFF

YES/NO

For information on strategic facilitation, governance development and leadership training services contact:
Gordon McIntosh PhD, CLGM   250-655-7455 or 250-881-0261   gmcintosh@lglinstitute.com



FFOOLLLLOOWW--UUPP  AACCTTIIOONN  LLIISSTT  ((FFUUAALL))

Date: ____________________

MMEEEETTIINNGG  ((DDaattee))//IItteemm//Notes WWHHOO AACCTTIIOONN TTAARRGGEETT
((LLeeaadd)) ((ttoo//vviiaa)) ((SSttaattuuss))

For information on strategic facilitation, governance development and leadership training services contact:
Gordon McIntosh PhD, CLGM   250-655-7455 or 250-881-0261   gmcintosh@lglinstitute.com



RREEQQUUEESSTT  FFOORR  DDEECCIISSIIOONN  ((RRFFDD))

SUBJECT: Decision-making topic title

RECOMMENDATION:  Clear decision-making resolution answering  What?,  Who?,  How?,  When?.

CAO COMMENTS: Any additional comments regarding the reason for the recommendation

RECOMMENDATION Report/Document: Attached Available Nil

KEY ISSUE(S)/CONCEPTS DEFINED: Define the topic, reference background material and state question to
be answered

RELEVANT POLICY: Cite existing policies, practices and/or legislation

STRATEGIC RELEVANCE:   To Goals or priorities of current work program

DESIRED OUTCOME(S): Main Result along with - highlighted requisites and benefits

RESPONSE OPTIONS: Possible ways to achieve the main result with analysis highlights

1. ________________________________________________________________________________________________

2. ________________________________________________________________________________________________

3. ________________________________________________________________________________________________

PREFERRED STRATEGY: Rationale for selected option – including pros and cons

IMPLICATIONS OF RECOMMENDATION:

GENERAL: Consequences to community, overall organization and/or other agencies

ORGANIZATIONAL: Policy change or staff work load requirements

FINANCIAL: Current and/or Future Budget impact

FOLLOW UP ACTION: Timelines, decision-making milestones and key products

COMMUNICATION: Strategy to inform, consult or involve stakeholders 

OTHER COMMENTS: By others reviewing this RFD

Submitted by: Writer ________________________________ Endorsed by: Other __________________________

Reviewed by:  CAO______________________________ Reviewers ______________________

For information on strategic facilitation, governance development and leadership training services contact:
Gordon McIntosh PhD, CLGM   250-655-7455 or 250-881-0261   gmcintosh@lglinstitute.com



CCOOUUNNCCIILL  DDIIRREECCTTIIOONN  RREEQQUUEESSTT  ((CCDDRR))

SUBJECT: Discussion Topic  title

SUGGESTED FOLLOW-UP ACTION: Next steps to develop the topic further discussion or decision?

CAO COMMENTS: Any additional comments regarding the suggestion.

BACKGROUND: Report/Document: Attached Available Nil

1. DEFINE THE TOPIC

KEY INFORMATION: Key summary of existing information to understand the nature of the topic.

RELEVANT OBSERVATIONS: Note issues or opportunities related to the complexity of the topic

STRATEGIC QUESTIONS: What needs to be known before recommendations can be developed?

ESSENTIAL QUESTION: The key question to guide the information and recommendation activities

______________________________________________________________________________________________?

2. DETERMINE DESIRED OUTCOMES if the essential question is addressed

KEY RESULT: The tangible outcome the organization can achieve to address the essential question.

** ____________________________________________________________________________________________

DESIRED BENEFITS OF KEY RESULT:  What positive conclusions are expected?

REQUISITES:  What must happen before the key result can be achieved?

UNINTENDED OUTCOMES: Are there possible undesirable effects that could occur?

3. EXPLORE RESPONSE OPTIONS to achieve the key result (Pros & Cons)

1. ___________________________

2. ___________________________

3. ___________________________

Submitted by: Writer __________________________ Reviewed by:  CAO__________________________

For information on strategic facilitation, governance development and leadership training services contact:
Gordon McIntosh PhD, CLGM   250-655-7455 or 250-881-0261   gmcintosh@lglinstitute.com


	00 May 2021 Council Agenda.pdf (p.1-2)
	3.a DRAFT April 2021 Minutes.pdf (p.3-9)
	4.a Grants Policy - May 2021.pdf (p.10-34)
	4.b Kings REMO - May 2021.pdf (p.35-57)
	4.c Alternative Voting - May 2021.pdf (p.58-71)
	4.d Accessibility Plan - May 2021.pdf (p.72-81)
	5.b.1 Councillor Gerrard Report - May 2021.pdf (p.82-83)
	5.b.2 Councillor Huntley Report - May 2021.pdf (p.84-87)
	5.b.3 Councillor Maxwell Report - May 2021.pdf (p.88-90)
	5.b.4 Deputy Mayor Savage Report - May 2021.pdf (p.91-93)
	5.b.5 Councillor Yorke Report - May 2021.pdf (p.94)
	5.b.6 Councillor Zebian Report - May 2021.pdf (p.95-96)
	5.c Mayor Snow Report - May 2021.pdf (p.97-100)
	6.a MPF ADHOC committee - May 2021.pdf (p.101)
	6.b Transparency - May 2021.pdf (p.102-109)

